
AGENDA 
KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

1:00 p.m., Thursday, July 17, 2014 
 

AUDITORIUM B 
Dwight D. Eisenhower State Office Building 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 460 
Topeka, KS 66603 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes of June 20, 2014 
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature.  If requested by a commissioner, 
an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items for 
further discussion and consideration. 

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components 

a. GLI Approval Letters July 2014 

2. Internal control amendment approvals 

a. Boot Hill Casino & Resort internal control amendment approvals 

b. Kansas Star Casino internal control amendment approvals 

c. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway internal control amendment approvals 

E. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

a. Monthly Report 

b. June 2014 Gaming Revenue Report 

2. Kansas Star Casino 

a. Monthly Report 

b. June 2014 Gaming Revenue Report 

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 

a. Monthly Report 

b. June 2014 Gaming Revenue Report 

Agenda (Page 1 of 2)



F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

            NONE 

G.  COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

1. Quarterly reports on staff out-of-state travel, licensing, and illegal gambling. 
Commission Action:            Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:              Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director 
Staff Recommendation:      No action required 
 
a.    Staff Memo 

H.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I.   STAFF REPORTS 
1. Executive Director 

a. Voluntary Exclusion Report 
b. KRGC Financial Report 

J.   EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open Meetings 
Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-4319.  The 
Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s attorney, to discuss 
personnel matters, to protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information, and to 
protect the integrity of gaming and finances. 
1. Attorney/Client privilege 
2. Background reports 

K.  OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals 

L.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda (Page 2 of 2)



 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – JUNE 20, 2014 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
(A.) 

 Chairman Timothy Shultz called the June 20, 2014, meeting to order 
at 10:00 a.m. at 700 SW Harrison, Auditorium A, Suite 450, Topeka, 
Kansas.  Commissioners R. Eileen King and David H. Moses were 
present. Commissioner Dennis McKinney was absent. Others present 
included Executive Director Richard Petersen-Klein, Director of 
Security Don Brownlee, Director of Administration and Finance 
Brandi White, Director of IT and Electronic Security Dennis 
Bachman, recording secretary Chris Vega and other staff.  

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA AS AMENDED: 
(B.) 

 There was one amendment to the GLI Approval Letters removing   
two items from the list of approval recommendations (D.1.a.).  
Commissioner King (Moses) moved to approve the agenda as 
amended.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE  
MAY 16, 2014, MEETING 
MINUTES: 
(C.) 

 Commissioner King (Moses) moved to approve the minutes of the 
May 16, 2014 meeting.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
(D.) 

 Commissioner Moses (King) moved to approve the consent agenda.   
Motion passed unanimously. 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; BOOT 
HILL CASINO AND 
RESORT: 
(E.1.) 

 Diane Giardine, Senior Director of Administration and Support, 
reported: 

• For the month of May 2014, Boot Hill Casino and Resort 
(BHCR) experienced a decrease in total gaming revenue of 
2.18% from April 2014.  Table games revenue was up 
39.47% while slot revenue was down 6.72%.  The revenue 
changes contributed to an increase in table hold and a 
decrease in slot hold. 

• The Buffalo and Longhorn exhibit opening on Memorial Day 
weekend located on property of the BHCR and the United 
Wireless Arena was successful. 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 

 Scott Cooper, General Manager, reported: 
• May 2014 admissions were down ten percent from May 2013. 

C. (Page 1 of 5)



 

KANSAS STAR: 
(E.2.) 

• Construction of the Kansas Star Casino convention/meeting 
space and adjacent equestrian building is on schedule for 
fourth quarter 2014 opening. 

• The 150 room hotel expansion is scheduled to open in July 
2014. 

• Steel for the conference space goes up at the end of June/early 
July. 

• Work on the southeast parking lot is complete. 
• May revenue numbers compared to May 2013: 

o Total gaming revenue down seven percent.  
o Slot coin-in (handle) down five percent. 
o Slot hold up 2.7 percent. 
o Table game drop down two percent. 
o Table game hold down 3.4 percent.  
o Poker room revenue up four percent. 

• Upcoming events at the Kansas Star Casino Arena are: 
o Pat Benatar/Rick Springfield concert (July 17th). 
o American Idol Live concert (August 2nd). 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT 
KANSAS SPEEDWAY: 
(E.3.) 

 Bob Sheldon, General Manager, reported: 
• May 2014 revenue numbers compared to May 2013: 

o Total gaming revenue was $11.7 million, up 
$322,000, or 2.8 percent. 

o Table games revenue was $1.7 million, up 1.4 percent. 
o Slot revenue was $10.0 million, up 3.1 percent. 

• The spring NASCAR race was held in May this year with the 
Sprint Cup race on Saturday evening which had a prime-time 
national television broadcast.   

• During the week, Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway had 
a meet and greet with NASCAR champion driver Brad 
Keselowski which was open to the public in Turn 2 Sports 
Bar. 

• Attendance was very strong for the race and table games play 
was good along with strong food & beverage sales during the 
race weekend. 

• Race viewing events were held for invited customers both in 
the Turn 2 Sports Bar as well as the exterior patio area behind 
the casino. 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS –  • There were no Commission items pertaining to old business 

C. (Page 2 of 5)



 

OLD BUSINESS; 
(F.) 

to discuss. 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS – 
NEW BUSINESS; 
(G.) 

 Mr. Petersen-Klein presented to the Commission, Education and 
Experience Qualifications.  This Commission item is new business 
that KRGC staff was asked to provide the Commission for the 
purpose of determining whether the Commission should establish 
specific minimum education or experience qualifications for casino 
positions.  Commission action requested was that the Commission 
review and hold discussion. 

   
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
(H.) 

 • Mr. Clint Patty, outside Legal Counsel for BHCR, spoke in 
regards to Item G of the Agenda.  Mr. Patty presented the 
Commission with a hand-out explaining why BHCR would 
like either the opportunity to quickly modify job descriptions 
as the need arises, or have some ability to have these 
requirements waived or eliminated to allow management 
flexibility in developing a good local group of employees 
dedicated to Dodge City and BHCR. 

• Mr. Scott Cooper and Mr. Bob Sheldon also spoke in regards 
to Item G of the Agenda. 

   
STAFF REPORTS; 
(I.) 

 Mr. Petersen-Klein, reported: 
• The Kansas Lottery set a deadline of December 19, 2014 for 

receipt of applications for SE gaming zone regarding a casino.  
Applications to begin being accepted on July 14, 2014.  Mr. 
Petersen-Klein will provide the Commission with a memo of 
how the new casino process will work. 

• The number of enrollees in the Voluntary Exclusion Program 
from the month of May 2014 declined but still above May 
2013 enrollees. 

• KRGC’s financial report compares favorably to prior year and 
prior months. 

• The next Commission meeting will be held on Thursday, July 
17, 2014 at 1:00 p.m. 

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSIONS: 
(J.) 

 Chairman Shultz moved that the commission go into executive 
session for the purpose of (1) attorney/client privilege and (2) 
reviewing the list of confidential backgrounds for licensing.  Those 
included in the executive sessions were the commissioners, executive 

C. (Page 3 of 5)



 

director, staff attorney, and director of security. The total time for the 
executive sessions was anticipated to be twenty-five minutes, from 
11:35 a.m. until 12:00 p.m.  No action is to be taken in executive 
session, and the subjects discussed are to be limited as previously 
described.  A full record of this motion is to be maintained as a part 
of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting 
is to be continued in open session.  Commissioner King (Moses) 
made a motion to adjourn to executive session.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  Adjourned to executive session at 11:35 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 12:02 p.m. with all members 

present as previously noted.  Additional time in the amount of ten 
minutes was needed to review confidential backgrounds for licensing.  
The commission meeting adjourned by unanimous consent motion to 
resume executive session at 12:03 p.m. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting returned to open session at 12:15 p.m. with 

all members present as previously noted.  Additional time in the 
amount of ten minutes was needed.  The commission meeting 
adjourned by unanimous consent motion to resume executive session 
at 12:15 p.m. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting returned to open session at 12:22 p.m. with 

all members present. 
   
MOTION TO DENY, 
CONDITIONALLY 
APPROVE, TABLE, AND 
APPROVE LICENSE 
APPLICATIONS 
(K.) 

 Commissioner King (Moses) moved to deny four applications, to 
conditionally approve one application for sixty days, to table one 
application for ninety days and approve the remaining 231 license 
applications from the June 20, 2014 list of background reports 
referred to the commission for action.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
ADJOURN: 
(L.) 

 Commissioner Moses (King) moved to adjourn the meeting.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  The commission meeting adjourned at 12:25 
p.m. 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

C. (Page 4 of 5)



 

SUBMITTED BY:   
   
(Signature on file)   
R. Eileen King   
Secretary   
   
APPROVED BY:   
   
(Signature on file)   
Timothy A. Shultz   
Chairman   
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. (Page 5 of 5)



Manufacturer File Number ID Number Version Game Name

1
SY-286-ADC-14-01

ADVANCED CASINO 
SYST

TSPENFIXXX FixPack4 N/A

2
SY-50-ADC-14-01

ADVANCED CASINO 
SYST

SMS_NT.hex 121.1 N/A

3 MO-22-ARI-14-10 ARISTOCRAT 1.01-62468 GEN7WS Full Eclipse
4 MO-22-ARI-14-10 ARISTOCRAT 1.01-62468 GEN7WS Full Eclipse
5 SY-00-ARI-14-11 ARISTOCRAT KansasStarCasino_PSv1_LI-D439.olf2 N/A Attestation Letter
6 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT BlackBart 12.5.18000.155
7 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT BonusPoints 12.5.18000.142
8 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT Count Interface 12.5.14000.93
9 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Diagnostic Monitor 12.7.1000.1

10 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT FloorLogix 12.7.1000.3
11 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT HeadCount 12.5.18000.128
12 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT JackpotFill 12.7.1000.1
13 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Job Scheduler Service 12.7.1000.1
14 SY-171-ARI-12-02 ARISTOCRAT License File Manager 12.4.2000.53
15 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Marketing Manager 12.7.1000.1
16 SY-171-ARI-12-02 ARISTOCRAT Meter Comparison 12.4.2000.53
17 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT Oasis Security Service 12.5.18000.128
18 SY-171-ARI-12-02 ARISTOCRAT OmniVIEW 12.4.19000.47
19 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT Quickets HandHeld Ticketing 12.5.18000.14
20 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT Quick Funds 12.5.18000.142
21 SY-171-ARI-12-02 ARISTOCRAT QF Validation Number Gen 12.4.15000.4
22 SY-73-ARI-14-15 ARISTOCRAT Quickets 12.7.1004.1
23 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT SpeedMedia Administrator 12.7.1000.2
24 SY-73-ARI-14-18 ARISTOCRAT Gateway (Cash) 12.7.1005.16
25 SY-73-ARI-14-19 ARISTOCRAT Gateway (Non-Cash) 12.7.1006.17
26 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Pit Printer 12.7.1000.5
27 SY-73-ARI-14-17 ARISTOCRAT x2S 12.7.1005.11
28 SY-73-ARI-14-09 ARISTOCRAT Encryption & Conv Manager 12.8.1000.8
29 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Universal PIN Extractor 12.7.1000.1
30 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Universal PIN Validation 12.7.1000.2
31 SY-73-ARI-14-09 ARISTOCRAT Surveillance Monitor 12.8.1000.2
32 SY-171-ARI-12-02 ARISTOCRAT Watchdog 12.4.17000.19
33 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT Sentinel III 12.5.17000.119
34 SY-73-ARI-13-09 ARISTOCRAT nk.nb0 2.7.3
35 SY-73-ARI-14-06 ARISTOCRAT nCompass 1.17.0.9
36 SY-73-ARI-14-06 ARISTOCRAT x 1.21.0
37 SY-73-ARI-14-06 ARISTOCRAT nCompass LITE 1.17.0.9
38 SY-286-14-01 ARISTOCRAT Administrator 12.7.1300.2
39 SY-22-ARI-14-02 ARISTOCRAT Patron Balance Service 12.7.1007.24
40 SY-286-ARI-14-01 ARISTOCRAT Patron Service 12.7.1300.1
41 SY-22-ARI-14-02 ARISTOCRAT PitBOSS 12.7.1007.17
42 SY-22-ARI-14-02 ARISTOCRAT Super-PlayMate 12.7.1007.13
43 SY-286-ARI-14-01 ARISTOCRAT x PersonalBanker
44 SY-286-ARI-14-01 ARISTOCRAT nTime 12.7.1300.5

ARISTOCRAT report, trackers, dlls
45 SY-22-ARI-14-02 ARISTOCRAT x2S
46 SY-22-ARI-14-02, ARISTOCRAT Patron Balance Service 55927
47 SY-22-ARI-14-02, ARISTOCRAT Patron Service TD56234, 56077
48 SY-22-ARI-14-02 ARISTOCRAT Quickets 53921
49 SY-22-ARI-14-05 ARISTOCRAT Cash Gateway 60893
50 SY-73-ARI-14-23 ARISTOCRAT FloorLogix 51958
51 SY-73-ARI-14-23 ARISTOCRAT SpeedMedia 52477
52 SY-38-ARI-13-03 ARISTOCRAT Configuration Service 12.7.1000.1
53 MO-73-BAL-13-174 BALLY BAL_237552A BAL_237552A CONTROL LOGIC
54 MO-73-BAL-13-174 BALLY BAL_237555A BAL_237555A PRIZEBALL DRAGON - COMMON ART
55 MO-73-BAL-13-174 BALLY BAL_237553A BAL_237553A PRIZEBALL DRAGON- LANGUAGE PACK (ENGLISH)
56 SY-73-BLY-14-01 BALLY NORTH 245327 13.1 COOL SIGN CASINO EQUIPMENT INTERFACE (CEI)

57 MO-22-IGT-13-260 IGT SIGN1159 RAPID PROGRESSIVE UC SERIES 3 RAPID PROGRESSIVE UC SERIES 3

58 MO-22-IGT-14-48 IGT FEAT014-PC-W81-0001 AVP GAME PACKAGE ULTIMATE X POKER - PRE CONFIG FOR EZ SET
59 MO-22-IGT-14-48 IGT FI014-PC-W81-00001 AVP INSTALL ULTIMATE X POKER - PRE CONFIG FOR EZ SET
60 MO-22-IGT-14-61 IGT GAME014-001JA1-D03 AVP GAME PACKAGE BLACK RHINO
61 MO-22-IGT-14-61 IGT GI014-001JA1-D003 AVP INSTALL BLACK RHINO
62 MO-22-IGT-14-61 IGT GI014-001JA1-D003.V02 AVP INSTALL BLACK RHINO
63 MO-22-IGT-14-69 IGT GAME014-001IZ7-D04 AVP GAME PACKAGE TEXAS TEA 3X3
64 MO-22-IGT-14-69 IGT GI014-001IZ7-D004 AVP INSTALL TEXAS TEA 3X3
65 MO-22-IGT-14-69 IGT GI014-001IZ7-D004.V02 AVP INSTALL TEXAS TEA 3X3
66 MO-22-IGT-14-71 IGT GAME014-001IZ9-D03 AVP GAME PACKAGE DOUBLE BUCKS
67 MO-22-IGT-14-71 IGT GI014-001IZ9-D003 AVP INSTALL DOUBLE BUCKS
68 MO-22-IGT-14-71 IGT GI014-001IZ9-D003.V02 AVP INSTALL DOUBLE BUCKS

Recommended for Approval

D.1.a. (Page 1 of 3)



69 MO-286-IGT-14-15 IGT GAME014-005SJ9-B03 AVP GAME PACKAGE LEGEND OF THE GAUCHO
70 MO-286-IGT-14-15 IGT GI014-005SJ9-B003 AVP INSTALL LEGEND OF THE GAUCHO
71 MO-286-IGT-14-15 IGT GI014-005SJ9-B003.V02 AVP INSTALL LEGEND OF THE GAUCHO
72 MO-286-IGT-14-17 IGT GAME014-002RQ5-B02 AVP GAME PACKAGE PANPAN
73 MO-286-IGT-14-17 IGT GI014-002RQ5-B002 AVP INSTALL PANPAN
74 MO-286-IGT-14-17 IGT GI014-002RQ5-B002.V02 AVP INSTALL PANPAN
75 MO-286-IGT-14-19 IGT GAME014-005QX2-M06 AVP GAME PACKAGE CITY OF LIGHTS
76 MO-286-IGT-14-19 IGT GI014-005QX2-M006 AVP INSTALL CITY OF LIGHTS
77 MO-286-IGT-14-19 IGT GI014-005QX2-M006.V02 AVP INSTALL CITY OF LIGHTS
78 MO-286-IGT-14-42 IGT GAME014-004PD2-D15 AVP GAME PACKAGE WILD CHERRY
79 MO-286-IGT-14-42 IGT GI014-004PD2-D015 AVP INSTALL WILD CHERRY
80 MO-286-IGT-14-42 IGT GI014-004PD2-D015.V02 AVP INSTALL WILD CHERRY
81 MO-286-IGT-14-43 IGT GAME014-004PD3-D16 AVP GAME PACKAGE WILD CHERRY
82 MO-286-IGT-14-43 IGT GI014-004PD3-D016 AVP INSTALL WILD CHERRY
83 MO-286-IGT-14-43 IGT GI014-004PD3-D016.V02 AVP INSTALL WILD CHERRY
84 MO-73-KON-14-107 KONAMI GAMING INC. ANDV107G12 GAME PROGRAM Ancient Dragon
85 MO-73-KON-14-107 KONAMI GAMING INC. ANDV107G12 GAME PROGRAM Ancient Dragon
86 MO-73-KON-14-107 KONAMI GAMING INC. ANDV107G12-CF SOUND/GRAPHICS Ancient Dragon
87 MO-73-KON-14-110 KONAMI GAMING INC. ERWV104G12 GAME PROGRAM Erupting Wilds
88 MO-73-KON-14-110 KONAMI GAMING INC. ERWV104G12 GAME PROGRAM Erupting Wilds
89 MO-73-KON-14-110 KONAMI GAMING INC. ERWV104G12-CF SOUND/GRAPHICS Erupting Wilds
90 MO-73-KON-14-45 KONAMI GAMING INC. GIST111G26 GAME PROGRAM Gigantic 7s
91 MO-73-KON-14-45 KONAMI GAMING INC. GIST111G26 GAME PROGRAM Gigantic 7s
92 MO-73-KON-14-45 KONAMI GAMING INC. GIST111G26-CF SOUND/GRAPHICS Gigantic 7s
93 MO-73-KON-14-90 KONAMI GAMING INC. GLOV102G12 GAME PROGRAM Graceful Lotus
94 MO-73-KON-14-90 KONAMI GAMING INC. GLOV102G12 GAME PROGRAM Graceful Lotus
95 MO-73-KON-14-90 KONAMI GAMING INC. GLOV102G12-CF SOUND/GRAPHICS Graceful Lotus
96 MO-99-WMS-14-03 WMS SABD-000-1010 1010 H19.021 Aftershock

D.1.a. (Page 2 of 3)



Manufacturer File Number ID Number Version Game Name Replace With
Remove/ 

Replace by:
1 IGT MO-286-IGT-13-103 GAME014-004PD3-F10 AVP GAME PACKAGE Wild Cherry GAME014-004PD3-D16 Immediate
2 IGT MO-286-IGT-13-103 GI014-004PD3-F010 AVP INSTALL Wild Cherry GI014-004PD3-D016 Immediate
3 IGT MO-286-IGT-13-103 GI014-004PD3-F010.V02 AVP INSTALL Wild Cherry GI014-004PD3-D016.V02 Immediate
4 IGT MO-286-IGT-13-105 GAME014-004PD2-F09 AVP GAME PACKAGE WILD CHERRY GAME014-004PD2-D15 Immediate
5 IGT MO-286-IGT-13-105 GI014-004PD2-F009 AVP INSTALL WILD CHERRY GI014-004PD2-D015 Immediate
6 IGT MO-286-IGT-13-105 GI014-004PD2-F009.V02 AVP INSTALL WILD CHERRY GI014-004PD2-D015,V02 Immediate

Recommend for Revocation

D.1.a. (Page 3 of 3)



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director Sam Brownback, Governor 
 

 

 
 

Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

July 17, 2014 
 
 
 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? 

Regulation/IC Reference Staff 
Recommendation 

BH346 – Internal Audit No KAR 112-104-24, KAR 112-108-52/ IC 
280.020.00 Approval 

BH348 – Emergency-Release 
Count Room No KAR 112-104-15/ IC 160.070.00 Approval 

BH356 – Mississippi Stud w/ 
Bonus Bet No KAR 112-108-6/ IC 210.040.00 Approval 

BH367 – Table of Contents No Table of Contents Approval 
 

D.2.a. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director Sam Brownback, Governor 
 

 

 
 

Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

July 17, 2014 
 

 
Item #/ (Description) Regulation 

Waiver? 
Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 
KS162 – Bad Beat Form  No KAR 112-108-45/ Bad Beat Texas Hold’em 

Progressive Jackpot Payout Form 
Approval 

 

D.2.b. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director Sam Brownback, Governor 
 

 

 
 

Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

July 17, 2014 
 

 
Item #/ (Description) Regulation 

Waiver? 
Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 
HW52 – Updated Organizational 
Charts and Job Descriptions 

No Job Descriptions Approval 

HW54 -  Chapter B – Table 
Games 

No 112-108-13(d) and 112-108-21; IC Chapter 
B: Section 8.06 – 8.09 and Section 9.04 

Approval 

 

D.2.c. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 

BOOTHILL CASINO & RESORT 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
July 17, 2014 

 
BY: Ryan Deutsch, Controller 

 
1) For the month of June 2014, BHCR experienced a decrease in Total Gaming Revenue of 

6.27% over prior month May 2014.  This is contributed to a decrease in both EGM coin 
in and Table’s drop.  Total visitation was down in June due to the start of Harvest for 
many farmers in SW Kansas.  We are looking forward to the Wild West Heritage 
Foundations’ cattle drive on August 2nd and our Dodge Ram Truck giveaway on August 
3rd.  

E.1.a. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director Sam Brownback, Governor 
 

 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

         Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         
  

June 
 

June 
 

Fiscal YTD 
 

Fiscal YTD 

  
2014 

 
2013 

 
2014 

 
2013 

         
Electronic gaming machines 

 

       
2,833,427.32  

 

  
3,080,187.89  

 

    
35,077,903.54  

 

  
36,849,991.29  

         
Table games 

 

          
353,256.50  

 

     
509,131.55  

 

      
4,815,728.00  

 

     
6,486,145.04  

         
Other # 

 

               
3,431.23  

 

          
3,005.24  

 

            
12,643.73  

 

          
17,367.63  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue 

 

       
3,190,115.05  

 

  
3,592,324.68  

 

    
39,906,275.27  

 

  
43,353,503.96  

         
State Share 22% 

 

          
701,825.31  

 

     
790,311.43  

 

      
8,779,380.56  

 

     
9,537,770.87  

         
Local Share 3% 

 

             
95,703.45  

 

     
107,769.74  

 

      
1,197,188.26  

 

     
1,300,605.12  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2% 

 

             
63,802.30  

 

        
71,846.49  

 

          
798,125.51  

 

        
867,070.08  

         
Casino Share 73% 

 

       
2,328,783.99  

 

  
2,622,397.02  

 

    
29,131,580.95  

 

  
31,648,057.89  

         *Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 
  

         #Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
       

 
 

E.1.b. (Page 1 of 1)



KANSAS STAR CASINO 
REPORT PRESENTED TO  

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
July 17, 2014 

 

BY: SCOTT COOPER – GENERAL MANAGER 

 

Operational Notes 

• June admissions down 15% from June 2013. 
• Construction of the KSC convention/meeting space and adjacent 

equestrian building on schedule for 4th quarter 2014 opening. 
• Hotel 150 room expansion due to open in July. 
• Steel work for the conference space is ongoing.  
• Work on the SE parking lot is completed. 

 

Upcoming Arena Events 

• Pat Benatar/Rick Springfield, July 17th 
• American Idol Live 2014, August 2nd 

 

June Revenue #’s 

• Total Gaming Revenue down10% from June 2013. 
• Slot Coin-In (Handle) down 12% from June 2013. 
• Slot hold up 1% from June 2013. 
• Table Game drop down 12% from June 2013. 
• Table Game hold up 1% from June 2013. 
• Poker Room revenue up 6% from June 2013.  

 

 

E.2.a. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director Sam Brownback, Governor 
 

 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         
  

June 
 

June 
 

Fiscal YTD 
 

Fiscal YTD 

  
2014 

 
2013 

 
2014 

 
2013 

         Electronic gaming machines 

 
     11,942,627.88  

 
  13,544,719.17  

 
  153,870,142.04  

 
  164,230,156.86  

         Table games 

 
       2,091,820.05  

 
     2,323,182.91  

 
     27,186,237.86  

 
     27,934,860.87  

         Other # 

 
                  258.92  

 
                         -    

 
             23,269.77  

 
             22,148.31  

         Total Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue 

 
     14,034,706.85  

 
  15,867,902.08  

 
  181,079,649.67  

 
  192,187,166.04  

         State Share 22% (Tier 1)** 

 
       3,087,635.51  

 
     3,490,938.46  

 
     39,837,522.93  

 
     42,281,176.53  

         State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)** 

 
                            -    

 
                         -    

 
          255,027.09  

 
             63,998.26  

         Local Share 3% 

 
          421,041.21  

 
        476,037.06  

 
       5,432,389.49  

 
       5,765,614.98  

         Problem Gambling Share 2% 

 
          280,694.14  

 
        317,358.04  

 
       3,621,592.99  

 
       3,843,743.32  

         Casino Share  

 
     10,245,336.00  

 
  11,583,568.52  

 
  131,933,117.17  

 
  140,232,632.95  

         
 *Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         #Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

         **During both calendar years 2012 and 2013, Kansas Star's revenue exceeded the tax Tier 1 as stated in  
their contract. The Tier 2 tax rate was applied to the revenue above Tier 1. 

 
         

 
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
          

E.2.b. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 
 
 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
JULY 18, 2014 

 
BY:  BOB SHELDON – VICE PRESIDENT & GENERAL MANAGER 

.       
 
Total Gaming Revenue for June 2014 was $ 10.4MM which was $302K, or 2.8% less than June 
of last year.  
 
Slot Revenue was $9.0MM which was an increase of $74K or 0.8% over the prior year. 
 
Table Games Revenue was $1.4MM, which was a decrease of $376K or 21.2% compared to 
prior year. This variance was due primarily to a large swing in hold percentage compared to last 
June which had an abnormally high hold. 
 
The month of June is usually impacted in the early weeks by seasonality.  In comparison to last 
year there was one less Saturday in June 2014 versus June 2013.  We were consistent with our 
marketing/promotional efforts in June.  On Friday, June 20th Hollywood held the Grand Prize 
“Spring into Summer” drawing where one lucky winner walked away with $15,000 in cash and 
nine (9) other guests won other prizes in varying amounts. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.3.a. (Page 1 of 1)



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Richard Petersen-Klein, Executive Director Sam Brownback, Governor 
 

 

 
HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 

     Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

     
 

June June Fiscal YTD Fiscal YTD 

 
2014 2013 2014 2013 

     
Electronic gaming machines 

     
9,031,277.13  

     
8,956,930.55  

  
112,156,118.53  

  
104,017,239.96  

     
Table games 

     
1,393,261.49  

     
1,773,813.55  

     
19,864,915.37  

     
20,955,128.58  

     
Other # 

             
3,683.17  

             
4,432.04  

             
15,358.16  

             
21,352.86  

     
Total Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue 

  
10,428,221.79  

  
10,735,176.14  

  
132,036,392.06  

  
124,993,721.40  

     
State Share 22% 

     
2,294,208.79  

     
2,361,738.75  

     
29,048,006.25  

     
27,498,618.71  

     
Local Share 3% 

        
312,846.65  

        
322,055.28  

       
3,961,091.76  

       
3,749,811.64  

     
Problem Gambling Share 2% 

        
208,564.44  

        
214,703.52  

       
2,640,727.84  

       
2,499,874.43  

     
Casino Share 73% 

     
7,612,601.91  

     
7,836,678.58  

     
96,386,566.20  

     
91,245,416.62  

     *Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 
 

     #Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
    

 
 
 
 

E.3.b. (Page 1 of 1)



 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500, Topeka, Kansas 66603 
(785) 296-5800, Fax (785) 296-0900 

 
 

   

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Reports on (1) staff out-of-state travel, (2) licensing and (3) 
illegal gambling  

PRESENTER:  Richard Petersen-Klein 

To ensure that it is being consistent and efficient, the commission has requested quarterly 
updates on out-of-state travel, licensing matters, and illegal gambling efforts. 

I. OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL 

  The quarterly out-of-state travel report includes the employees who traveled and the purpose 
of the trip and the total expenses incurred for the trip.  Because the Commission maintains its 
background investigation details as highly confidential, the quarterly travel report does not include out-
of-state trips for investigative or targeted purposes.   

For the fourth quarter (April through June) of the State’s FY 2014, commission staff out-of-state 
travel includes: 

 

Purpose of Trip Traveler Dates Destination Registration Total 

Forensic Training – STOP 
& BDRA 

Casey Geist 03/30/14 – 
04/04/14 

Springfield, MO $0 $728.55 

Forensic Training – STOP 
& BDRA 

James Root 03/30/14 – 
04/04/14 

Springfield, MO $0 $738.55 

2014 IIA Gaming 
Conference 

Jeffrey Igercic 04/13/14 – 
04/17/14 

Las Vegas, NV $995 $2,158.57 

2014 IIA Gaming 
Conference 

Brandi White 04/13/14 – 
04/17/14 

Las Vegas, NV $995 $2,377.31 

Street Survival Seminar Tim Robinson 05/04/14 – 
05/07/14 

Bellevue, NE $199 $702.11 

Southern Gaming 
Summit 

Dennis 
Bachman 

05/05/14 – 
05/09/14 

Biloxi, 
Mississippi 

$295 $1,784.21 

Forensic Training – IDRA Casey Geist 05/05/14 – 
05/09/14 

Springfield, MO $0 $564.04 

G.1.a. (Page 1 of 4)



Staff Agenda Memorandum July 17, 2014 Page 2 

  

Forensic Training – IDRA James Root 05/05/14 – 
05/09/14 

Springfield, MO $0 $607.79 

      

II. LICENSING 

 Objectives of the commission include conducting timely, but thorough, background 
investigations on all gaming employees, management contractors, manufacturers and distributors 
seeking licensure at lottery gaming facilities located in this state. Background investigations are 
conducted to protect the public interest by maintaining a legitimate and viable gaming industry assuring 
honesty, good character and integrity of racing and gaming facility operators, employees, and vendors.  
Following is the licensing report for the April through June FY 2014 quarter.  The three previous quarters 
are included for comparison purposes. 

 

Apr-Jun 
2014 

Jan-Mar 
2014 

Oct-Dec 
2013 

Jul-Sep  
2013 

 
 

   VENDORS, SUPPLIERS, MANAGERS:  
   Corporate permanent licenses approved 8 2 4 5 

Corporate temporary licenses approved* 79 68 3 7 
Corporate employee licenses approved 164 82 45 92 
Corporate renewal licenses approved 3 6 0 0 
Corporate employee licenses renewed 38 21 51 73 
Corporate employee licenses denied 2 0 0 2 

 
    

BOOT HILL CASINO EMPLOYEE LICENSES     
Permanent license approvals 16 11 14 23 
Temporary license approvals* 24 14 12 10 
Renewal license approvals 33 45 31 35 
Licenses denied 0 0 3 4 

 
    

HOLLYWOOD CASINO EMPLOYEE 
LICENSES 

    

Permanent license approvals 77 60 103 104 
Temporary license approvals* 95 68 76 73 
Renewal license approvals 19 36 109 174 
Licenses denied 5 4 5 9 

 
    

KANSAS STAR CASINO EMPLOYEE 
LICENSES 

    

Permanent license approvals 50 55 79 148 
Temporary license approvals* 104 90 41 75 
Renewal license approvals 64 86 89 80 
Licenses denied 4 1 3 2 

*Temporary licenses approved will still need to be permanently approved in future quarter(s) once 
all backgrounding activities are completed. 

G.1.a. (Page 2 of 4)



Staff Agenda Memorandum July 17, 2014 Page 3 

  

III. ILLEGAL GAMBLING 

The Commission acts as the state's coordinating agency for most illegal gambling questions and 
complaints.  That role requires the KRGC to employ educational, administrative and law enforcement 
methods to maintain the integrity of gaming in Kansas and to help curtail illegal gambling that occurs in 
bars, restaurants, convenience stores and other venues throughout Kansas.  During the last legislative 
session, the legislature passed a resolution to put to voters the question of whether to amend the 
Kansas Constitution to allow raffles for certain non-profit organizations.  Raffles are currently illegal in 
Kansas, which is one of only four states that do not permit charitable raffles.  If passed, the regulation of 
charitable raffles will come under the jurisdiction of the Department of Revenue’s Charitable Gaming 
Division.  Effective May 15, 2014, in anticipation of the proposed constitutional amendment passing, 
KRGC began referring all charitable gambling calls to the Administrator of Charitable Gaming.  We 
expect calls to KRGC related to charitable gambling to decrease over the coming months. 

Since 2008, the Commission has received 1,461 total illegal gambling-related questions or 
complaints from the general public.  During the second quarter of 2014, the Commission received thirty-
one (31) calls and emails from the general public, down five (5) from the previous quarter and down 
four (4) from the second quarter of 2013.   

Of the thirty-one calls and emails received in Q-2, eleven (11) involved inquiries and complaints 
involving raffles; two (2) involved poker runs and illegal poker rooms; fourteen (14) pertained to reports 
of various illegal gambling devices found in bars, restaurants and convenience stores; two (2) concerned 
internet gambling related to the simulcast of parimutuel races and sports betting; and two (2) calls 
involved land-based horse racing and casino nights.   

Breakdown of illegal gambling inquiries and complaints to-date: 

  

The above chart does not reflect calls and activity related to the following: 
 

• Reports made to KRGC agents by other law enforcement officers around the state. 
• Discussions with local law enforcement and district and county attorneys regarding the legal 

aspects of illegal gambling and the services that KRGC can provide. 
• Time spent by agents and legal counsel to assist in active local investigations and prosecutions. 
• Time spent pursuing seizures and forfeitures of illegal gambling devices. 

Quarter 
Slider 275 

Raffle 358 

Slot 318 

Poker 296 

Internet 35 
Other 179 

G.1.a. (Page 3 of 4)



Staff Agenda Memorandum July 17, 2014 Page 4 

  

• Inquiries from the public that are answered through access to KRGC’s Illegal Gambling 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) web page.  KRGC updated the FAQs portion of the webpage 
in late January 2014.  During the five months since KRGC began tracking the new page, there 
have been a total of 156 inquiries to the page.  A total of 103 inquiries were made during the 
third quarter of 2014.  The Illegal Gambling FAQs page can be found here:  
http://www.krgc.ks.gov/index.php/racing-gambling-law/illegal-gambling/faq-s . 

 
             During the second quarter of 2014, KRGC enforcement agencies assisted another State agency 
with the seizure of three (3) illegal gambling devices and the cash contained within.  The KRGC is 
currently assisting two (2) agencies with ongoing investigations.  

G.1.a. (Page 4 of 4)

http://www.krgc.ks.gov/index.php/racing-gaming-law/illegal-gambling/faq-s�


 
  

 
 
 
                        

 
 

 
 

 
07.10.2014 

59.9% 
40.1% 

VEP Gender 

Male 

Female 

35.5% 
64.5% 

Exclusion Period 

Lifetime 

2-Year 

0.3% 0.9% 

25.5% 
18.2% 

54.6% 

0.5% 
0.0% 

10.0% 

20.0% 

30.0% 

40.0% 

50.0% 

60.0% 

NW NC NE SW SC SE 

Lottery Region 

0.0% 
3.9% 

19.1% 

28.2% 30.0% 

13.6% 

5.2% 

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older 

Age of VEP 

2 2 2 1 1 1 2 0 
4 2 0 1 

6 4 3 5 3 4 
0 

3 2 2 4 
7 

23 
20 

26 

16 
19 19 20 

27 26 
29 

19 

25 

37 

26 
22 

17 
20 

24 
28 27 28 27 29 

24 

38 

26 

34 

20 
24 

18 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

VEP Enrollments by Year 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 – June 2014 

Voluntary Exclusions = 801 
Violation Incidents = 47 (29 individuals) 

 

Voluntary Exclusions 
 

 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

2010 

2011 

2012 

African Am. 
7.7% 

Asian/P.I. 
20.1% 

Caucasian 
58.2% 

Lat/His 
13.0% 

Native Am. 
0.5% 

Other 
0.5% 

Ethnicity 

I.1.a. (Page 1 of 1)



All Departments

DeptID All

All Funds All Beg. Balance 2,959,400        Beg. Balance 479,075           Beg. Balance 3,800                Beg. Balance 87,452              

Revenue 4,497,519        Revenue 194,128           Revenue 5,996                Revenue 1,823                

Expenses 4,778,904        Expenses 354,873           Expenses 2,839                Expenses 8,005                

End Balance 2,678,015        End Balance 318,330           End Balance 6,957                End Balance 81,270              

Fund

BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2013 

ACTUALS 

YTD FY2014 

ACTUALS
$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE

June FY2013 

ACTUALS

June FY2014 

ACTUALS
$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE

YTD FY2014 

BUDGET

YTD FY2014 

ACTUALS
$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 4,603,081 4,243,454 -359,627 -8% 339,948 314,007 -25,941 -8% 4,781,390 4,243,454 -537,936 -11%

10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 - -95,712 0 95,712 -100%

Net Salaries and Wages 4,603,081 4,243,454 -359,627 -8% 339,948 314,007 -25,941 -8% 4,685,678 4,243,454 -442,224 -9%

52000 Communication 76,790 74,891 -1,899 -2% 13,933 9,181 -4,752 -34% 74,794 74,891 97 0%

52100 Freight and Express 556 662 107 19% 61 80 20 32% 2,000 662 -1,338 -67%

52200 Printing and Advertising 1,783 381 -1,401 -79% 0 73 73 - 3,600 381 -3,219 -89%

52300 Rents 176,044 169,654 -6,389 -4% 577 448 -129 -22% 171,931 169,654 -2,277 -1%

52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 44,642 45,291 649 1% 6,108 7,444 1,336 22% 64,205 45,291 -18,914 -29%

52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 65,177 56,409 -8,768 -13% 4,994 4,541 -453 -9% 94,844 56,409 -38,435 -41%

52520 Out of State Travel and Subsis 54,630 63,511 8,882 16% 6,444 2,034 -4,410 -68% 63,640 63,511 -129 0%

52530 International Travel and Subsi 2,195 12,383 10,187 464% 0 0 0 - 0 12,383 12,383 0%

52600 Fees-other Services 288,158 269,077 -19,082 -7% 44,714 26,972 -17,742 -40% 290,081 269,077 -21,004 -7%

52700 Fee-Professional Services 7,951 44,600 36,649 461% 5,589 325 -5,264 -94% 37,200 44,600 7,400 20%

52900 Other Contractual Services 3,485 3,847 362 10% 0 0 0 - 14,443 3,847 -10,596 -73%

Subtotal Contractual Services 721,410 740,706 19,296 3% 82,420 51,098 -31,322 -38% 816,738 740,706 -76,032 -9%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 - 700 0 -700 -100%

53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 1,082 762 -320 -30% 0 0 0 - 2,510 762 -1,748 -70%

53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 11,078 10,179 -899 -8% 1,943 660 -1,282 -66% 24,800 10,179 -14,621 -59%

53600 Pro Science Supply Material 4,506 13,408 8,902 198% 0 0 0 - 19,800 13,408 -6,392 -32%

53700 Office and Data Supplies 28,205 29,657 1,451 5% 12 2,083 2,071 17419% 63,400 29,657 -33,743 -53%

53900 Other Supplies and Materials 7,852 5,740 -2,113 -27% 40 53 13 33% 4,400 5,740 1,340 30%

Subtotal Commodities 52,725 59,746 7,021 13% 1,995 2,797 802 40% 115,610 59,746 -55,864 -48%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 52,584 90,854 38,270 73% 1,101 1,050 -51 -5% 97,921 90,854 -7,067 -7%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 9,861 9,861 - 583 2,474 1,891 324% 6,995 9,861 2,866 41%

56000 Debt Service - Principal 6,412 0 -6,412 -100% 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0%

56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0%

Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 6,412 9,861 3,449 54% 583 2,474 1,891 324% 6,995 9,861 2,866 41%

Grand Total 5,436,212 5,144,621 -291,590 -5% 426,047 371,426 -54,621 -13% 5,722,942 5,144,621 -578,320 -10%

Cash Fund Balances as June 30, 2014

ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.
I.1.b. (Page 1 of 1)



X. Calendar


	A. 2014-07-17 Agenda Packet - AFTER.pdf
	C. June 2014 Minutes Draft
	Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission
	Minutes – June 20, 2014

	D.1.a. GLI Approval_Revoked  Letters_July 2014
	APPROVED_Revoked 2014
	REVOKED 2014

	D.2.a. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 7_17_2014  Boot Hill
	D.2.b. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 7_17_2014  Kansas Star
	D.2.c. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 7_17_2014  Hollywood
	E.1.a. KRGC REPORT June- BHCR
	E.1.b. BH - June 2014 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.a. KRGC Monthly Meeting JULY 2014
	E.2.b. KS - June 2014 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.a. KRGC REPORT JUNE 2014
	E.3.b. HW - June 2014 Revenue Report - Blue
	G.1.a. 2014-7-17 Quarterly Report
	I.1.a. VEP Data Chart June 2014
	I.1.b. Dept by Budget Unit JuneFY14.ii
	X. Calendar
	D.1.a. GLI Approval_Revoked  Letters_July 2014 (2).pdf
	APPROVED_Revoked 2014




